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Clerk of the Superior Court
*** Electronically Filed ***
C. Diaz, Deputy
12/12/2023 11:22:18 AM
Filing ID 17035065

WOODNICK LAW, PLLC

1747 E. Morten Avenue, Suite 205

Phoenix, Arizona 85020

Telephone: (602) 449-7980

Facsimile: (602) 396-5850

Office@Woodnickl.aw.com

Gregg R. Woodnick, #020736

Isabel Ranney, #038564

Attorney for Respondent

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF MARICOPA

In Re the Matter of: Case No.: FC2023-052114
MOTION FOR LEAVE TO AMEND
LAURA OWENS, RESPONDENT’S RESPONSE TO
PETITION TO ESTABLISH
Petitioner, PATERNITY
and (Assigned to The Honorable Julie Mata)
CLAYTON ECHARD,
Respondent,

Pursuant to Rule 28(A)(2) of the Arizona Rules of Family Law Procedure (“ARFLP”),
Respondent, CLAYTON ECHARD, through undersigned counsel, respectfully requests leave
from this Court to file the Amended Response attached hereto as Exhibit A, which clarifies
the modifications that Respondent is requesting.

The reasons for this Amended Response are as follows:

1. Rule 28(A)(2) provides that “Leave to amend will be freely given when justice
requires.”

2. Respondent’s Amended Response is attached as Exhibit A. Note, for

clarification purposes, the Amended Response is not provided on the self-service documents
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that were initially filed. Any changes are bolded, and the remainder remains consistent with
the initial filing.

3. Specifically, Respondent seeks to amend his Response to include pertinent
background information for this Court, request this Court sanction Petitioner under Rule 26,
request his reasonable attorney’s fees, and request this Court enter a finding of nonpaternity.

WHEREFORE, Respondent respectfully requests that this Court permit Respondent
to file the attached Amended Response, attached hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein
by reference.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 12% day of December, 2023.

WOODNICK LAW, PLLC

—

Gregg R. Woodnick
Isabel Ranney
Attorneys for Respondent
ORIGINAL of the foregoing e-filed
this 12 day of December, 2023 with:

Clerk of Court
Maricopa County Superior Court

COPY of the foregoing document
delivered/emailed this 12 day of December, 2023, to:

The Honorable Julie Mata
Maricopa County Superior Court

Laura Owens
lauramichelleowens@gmail.com
Petitioner Pro Per

By: /s/ MB
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VERIFICATION - e

L CLAYTON ECHARD, declare under penalty of perjury that I am the Respondent
in the above-captioned matter; that I have read the foregoing Motion for Leave to Amend
Respondent’s Response to Petition to Establish Paternity and 1 know of the contents
thereof; that the foregoing is true and correct according to the best of my own knowledge,
information and belief; and as to those things stated upon information and belief, I believe

them to be true.

L o 2] 12

CLAYTON ECHARD Date




Exhibit “A”
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WOODNICK LAW, PLLC

1747 E. Morten Avenue, Suite 205
Phoenix, Arizona 85020
Telephone: (602) 449-7980
Facsimile: (602) 396-5850
Office@Woodnicklaw.com

Gregg R. Woodnick, #020736
Deandra M. Arena, #033369
Isabel Ranney, #038564
Attorney for Respondent

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF ARIZONA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF MARICOPA

In Re the Matter of: Case No.: FC2023-052114
LAURA OWENS
AMENDED RESPONSE TO PETITION TO
Petitioner, ESTABLISH PATERNITY
and
CLAYTON ECHARD, (Assigned to the Honorable Julic Mata)
Respondent.

Respondent, CLAYTON ECHARD, by and through undersigned counsel, hereby
submits his Amended Response to Petition to Establish Paternity, Legal Decision-Making,|
Parenting Time, and Child Support and states the following:

L BACKGROUND

1. Petitioner has not provided any verifiable scientific evidence that she is
pregnant, and all DNA tests have come back showing “little to no fetal DNA.” The testing

company, Ravgen Inc, has indicated that it will not release records of the testing without|

-1-




© W 0 N o6& O A W N =

N N N N N D N DD - o e omed ol omd el ooml omm
00 N o O h W N = O 0 0O N 06 1 D W N =

a Court Order.

2. Petitioner filed her Petition only affer Respondent indicated that he did not
want to have any relationship with her, romantic or otherwise, after she performed oral
sex on him on May 20, 2023.

3. Prior to and following her filing, Petitioner repeatedly threatened to go to
the media about her “pregnancy” and sent Respondent over 500 messages from different
phone numbers and email accounts. Judge Gialketsis found these messages and|
Petitioner’s conduct to constitute harassment when she granted Respondent’s Injunction|
Against Harassment on November 2, 2023 (Exhibit 1).

4. A sampling of Petitioner’s efforts to force Respondent into a relationship are
documented, in part, below:

a. Petitioner drafted a “contract” for Respondent to sign that promised “for
a period of one week, while determining the best court [sic] of action for
their pregnancy, Party A and Party B, will exclusively explore a relationship
with “intention” [...] There is no obligation to engage in intercourse if|
either Party is uncomfortable with the act.”” (Exhibit 2 — Initial Response
Exhibit 1)

b. 6/28/23: “I have offered to give you control over the outcome of the
pregnancy if we date exclusively and care for one another [...] I need to
know your decision tonight because I am getting rid of the abortion pills if
it’s a no or if I don’t hear back from you.” (Exhibit 3).

c. Petitioner threatened to post on her public Instagram account that she

2.
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was pregnant with Respondent’s children if he did not “unblock” her and|
said “if I can’t get you to do it, then maybe the public can convince you to.’}
(Exhibit 4)

d. Petitioner contacted Respondent’s Father, ostensibly to convince him to
force his son, Respondent, to speak with her (“I have not heard back from
Clayton and presume he has still blocked me.”) (Exhibit 5).

5. While this Family case was pending, Petitioner posted an “anonymous” blog
post on Medium.com (which she later deleted) (Exhibit 6), contacted the news media, and
made multiple postings on Reddit.com claiming that she was pregnant with Respondent’s|
children and including a Dropbox of doctored “medical” documents. (Exhibit 7).

6. Despite two (2) fetal DNA tests indicating “little to no fetal DNA” (and one|
(1) test lost in transit), Petitioner posted another Medium.com article identifying herself
as the “anonymous woman” on December 8, 2023. In the article, Petitioner continues to|
maintain she is pregnant with twins by Respondent. (Exhibit 8).

II. RESPONSE TO PETITIONER’S PETITION TO ESTABLISH

7. Respondent affirmatively alleges that Petitioner is fabricating pregnancy, as well

as refusing a paternity test.

8. Respondent affirmatively alleges that neither pregnancy nor paternity has been
proven.

9. Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and therefore venue is nof
relevant.

10.  Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and since Petitioner is

-3-
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unwilling to participate in a fourth paternity test, paternity and the jurisdiction for determining
its validity are unable to be proven/determined.

11.  Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and affirmatively alleges
that Petitioner has neither proven pregnancy nor Respondent’s paternity.

12. Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and therefore there is noj
legal parenthood to establish. Respondent alleges that only oral sex was performed between thé
parties. Respondent further alleges that despite multiple requests to do so, Petitioner has refused
to take a paternity test. Petitioner responded to Respondent’s request via email stating that she
would only take a paternity test if the parties were to date exclusively (Exhibit 1). Petitioner]
has threatened that she will write defamatory comments about this matter and release it to the
press (Exhibit 1). Petitioner has not established proof of paternity. Upon information and
belief, Petitioner suffers from mental health issues, and has caused Respondent to become]
concerned that she is stalking him.

13.  Petitioner was not married at the time the minor child(ren) were born of
conceived or at least 10 months before minor child(ren) were born or conceived.

14.  Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and therefore legal
decision-making and parenting time are not relevant.

15.  Respondent does not have any information regarding any court action in this state
involving the minor child(ren) in question that could affect this case including court cases for
enforcement and relating to domestic violence, protective orders, termination of parental rights
and adoptions.

16.  Respondent does not know a person other than Petitioner who has physical

-4-
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custody or who claims legal decision-making (legal custody) or parenting time rights to any of
the minor children in question.

17.  Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and therefore
unreimbursed medical expenses incurred by Petitioner are not relevant.

18. Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and therefore
unreimbursed other expenses are not relevant.

19.  Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and therefore the Parent
Information Program is not relevant.

20.  Respondent affirmatively alleges that domestic violence has not occurred in this
relationship.

21. Respondent affirmatively alleges that to his knowledge, neither party has been
convicted for a drug offense or driving under the influence of drugs or alcohol in the last twelve
(12) months.

22.  Respondent contests that Petitioner is pregnant by him and therefore child
support orders for either party are not relevant.

23.  Respondent denies any allegations not specifically admitted herein.

24. Respondent is entitled to an adjudication of non-paternity. Petitioner’s
relentless and harassing behavior through the media will only continue if this matter i%
not resolved by this Court finding Respondent is not the father of any alleged (and
believed to be fictitious) children.

25. Rule 26 sanctions are appropriate. Petitioner has violated Rule 26(b),

Arizona Rules of Family Law Procedure, and sanctions under Rule 26(c) are appropriate.

-5-
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Petitioner filed this action for the purposes of harassing Respondent and forcing him to
communicate with her. Despite Respondent’s repeated requests, Petitioner has provided
Respondent with no verified scientific evidence proving she is or was pregnant. Further,
after filing her Petition, Petitioner filed a “Motion to Communicate,” threatening to take
her “pregnancy” to the media if Respondent did not communicate with her. This Motion|
was denied. See Petitioner’s Motion to Communicate, filed August 8, 2023. Petitioner also
filed a “Motion for Contempt,” which this Court also denied, which requested this Courq
hold Respondent in cbntempt for not communicating with her. See Petitioner’s Motion|
for Contempt filed August 23, 2023 (also denied by this Court). As such, Petitioner’sw
Petition lacks evidentiary support, is being presented for the improper purpose, to harass
Respondent into communicating with her, and to cause Respondent to incur feeS.

26. The requirement of Rule 9(c) have been met in so far as there has been
excessive communication regarding these issues, not limited to Petitioner’s recent
Medium article and the 500+ texts and emails that predicate Judge Gialketsis’ granting
of the Injunction Against Harassment.

27.  Respondent is entitled to his reasonable attorney’s fees and costs incurred
based on Petitioner’s unreasonableness pursuant to A.R.S. § 25-324. Petitioner initiated
this filing based on a pregnancy that could not have occurred from oral sex. Despite this,
Petitioner repeatedly harassed Respondent, filed numerous bad faith pleadings with this
Court in an effort to force Respondent to communicate with her, went to the media when|
Respondent would not unblock her, and fabricated medical documents. Petitioher’SI

behavior is the very definition of unreasonableness.

-b-
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WHEREFORE, based upon all of the foregoing, Respondent respectfully requests thej
Court enter the following Orders:

A.  Issue an order declaring that Respondent is not the natural father of the minen]

children; any children born to Petitioner;

C. Issue an Order compelling Ravgen Inc produce all records and documents|
related to the fetal DNA testing in this matter;

D. That this Court sanction Petitioner pursuant to Rule 26;

E. That this Court award Respondent his reasonable attorney’s fees and costs|

based on Petitioner’s unreasonableness, pursuant to A.R.S. § 25-324;

G.  For such other and further relief as the Court deems just and proper under these
circumstances.
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED this 12 day of December, 2023.

WOODNICK LAW, PLLC

Gregg R. Woodnick
Isabel Ranney

Deandra Arena

Attorneys for Respondent

ORIGINAL of the foregoing e-filed
This 12th day of December, 2023 with:
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Clerk of the Court
Maricopa County Superior Court

COPY of the foregoing document
delivered this same day to:

The Honorable Julie Mata
Maricopa County Superior Court

COPY of the foregoing document
emailed this same day to:

Laura Owens

lauramichelleowens@gmail.com
Petitioner Pro Per

By:
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COURT
*ak RI ED***
11-2-2023 2:02 PM

CUrY ELEC I RUNICALLY KRECURUED

TRIAL COURTS OF ARIZONA IN MARICOPA COUNTY
Superior Court of Arizona/AZ007035J/0700 18380 N. 40th St  Phoenix, AZ 85032

Monday-Friday 8:00-5:00 C. Curley
DEPUTY CLERK
Injunction Against Harassment Case No. [CV2023-053950
[ 1 Amended Order Court ORI No. AZ007035J
[ 1 Sexual violence—no service fee County [Maricopa State JAZ
PLAINTIFF PLAINTIFF IDENTIFIERS
[Clayton Echard | l4/29/1993 ]
First Middle Last Plaintiff's Date of Birth
And on behalf of any minor family member or other Protected Person listed below:
V.
DEFENDANT DEFENDANT IDENTIFIERS
|Laura Owens | SEX RACE DOB HT WT
First Middle Last Female [Unknown  [5/14/1990 |Unknown |Unknown
. EYES HAIR Arizona Prohibits Release of
Defendant/Plaintiff Relationship: The Defendant and | are Unknown |Unknown Social Security Numbers
dating or ha_ve da}ted and have not had a romantic or DRIVER'S LICENSE # |STATE EXP DATE
sexual relationship. 171900

Defendant's Address:
11440 N 69TH ST, Scottsdale, AZ 85254

CAUTION: [ ] Weapon Alleged in Petition

WARNINGS TO DEFENDANT: This injunction shall be enforced, even without registration, by the courts of any state, the
District of Columbia, any U.S. Territory, and may be enforced by Tribal Lands (18 U.S.C. § 2265). Crossing state,
territorial or tribal boundaries to violate this injunction may result in federal imprisonment (18 U.S.C. § 2262).

Only the Court, in writing, can change this injunction.

[ 1 Estimated Date of Birth

This order is effective for one year from date of service.

THE COURT HEREBY FINDS THAT:

It has jurisdiction over the parties and subject matter.

[ ] Defendant received actual notice of this Hearing and had an opportunity to participate.

THE COURT, finding reasonable evidence of harassment or that great or irreparable harm would result if this injunction is

not granted before Defendant can be heard in opposition, and there are specific facts attesting to efforts to give notice to

Defendant or there are reasons why notice should not be given, HEREBY ORDERS:
NO CRIMES. Defendant shall not commit any act of harassment (A.R.S. § 12-1809(T)) or sexual violence (A.R.S. §
23-371) against Plaintiff or Protected Persons.

[x] NO CONTACT. Defendant shall have no contact with Plaintiff except through attorneys, legal process, court hearings,
and as checked: [ ] Phone [ ] Electronic (email, text, etc.)[ ] Mail [ ] Other:

THE COURT FURTHER ORDERS:

PROTECTED LOCATIONS. Defendant shall not go to or near Plaintiff's or other Protected Person's:
[X] Residence (confidential)

[ ] Workplace:
[ ] School:
[ ]Other:

[ ] ARIZONA FIREARMS LAW. Under Arizona Rules of Protective Order Procedure Rule 25(g), the court finds that
Defendant poses a credible threat to the physical safety of Plaintiff or Protected Persons. Therefore, Defendant shall
not possess, receive, or purchase firearms and shall surrender same within 24 hours of service to the Maricopa
County Sheriff's Office or other local law enforcement agency.




OTHER ORDERS:

The Court finds reasonable evidence of harassment of the Plaintiff by the Defendant or that great or irreparable harm
would result to the Plaintiff if the Injunction is not granted before the Defendant can be heard in opposition, and that there
are specific facts attesting to the efforts to give notice to the Defendant or that there are reasons why notice should not be
given. Defendant is not to have contact with Plaintiff or the protected party[ies] at any time by any means, including but
not limited to any in-person, physical, verbal, nonverbal, telephonic (text, email, apps), internet (social media, instant
messaging, apps) or third-party contact. Defendant shall not record by video or audio Plaintiff or the protected party[ies]
using any device, including but not limited to cell phones, cameras or other recording devices. Defendant shall not
approach Plaintiff or the protected party[ies] at their residence, workplace, school or vehicle. The Maricopa County
Superior Court does not give specific distance instructions in its injunctive orders. However, Plaintiff and or protected party
may make a report to law enforcement if Defendant is close enough to cause concern or make contact. Defendant shall
not be near Plaintiff and/or any protected party. Defendant shall not approach Plaintiff or a protected party in public
places.

11/2/2023 - Cynthia Gialketsis
Date Judicial Officer . Printed Name

WARNING: This is an official court order. If you disobey this order, you may be arrested and prosecuted for the
crime of interfering with judicial proceedings and any other crime you may have committed in disobeying this
order.

NOTICE: If you disagree with this injunction, you have the right to request a hearing, which will be held within 10 business
days after your written request has been filed in the court that issued this injunction. Violations of this injunction should be
reported to a law enforcement agency, not the court.

ADDITIONAL WARNINGS TO DEFENDANT: Nothing the plaintiff does can stop, change, or undo this Injunction
without the court’s written approval. You must appear in court to ask a judge to change (modify) or dismiss
(quash) this Injunction.
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Clayton,
1was going to ask it you wanted te read the articio | wmlo berofe euhnuﬂimlt 10 the Huﬂlnmf\ Post, but § know you won raspend so |1 take i that | have your permission to sand itin as Is, Balore |

do that and prior to your work getling invelved with wi child 1, | wanted to ask ene faat time about the egreement. | added u few things to it that are In bald. Hate it is:

(@ Merslon 4 - Relationship Non-Digelogure AQ...

{ also contacted anather abortion pill pany who eald we could stiil do it at this point if we wanted 0. You haven't and aran' putting pressura on ma to 4o thay, but it is reaflly important that we talk

abaut this if you dont want to have thae twins with me. Your behavior leads me to baeve that would b your preference, so you need to aay samething (f it [s. 1 will not ho'd It against you whatsoevar i
you sign the agreement. if you don't, that's tina, but we are having them.

1 jJust want to have a frosh start and remove all of this animasity from the picture. We need to be making amart decisions right now, not ones driven by emotiona. Nalther one of us wanted this, but it's
happaned, end wa need to make smart choices. I | dont hear bacek, then e, we can continue like this and | will submit my piece to Huft Post, but your unmesponsivaness s getiing you nowherswnm
me and wiil get you in trouble with the count.

Plaase simply ider the ag L with modifieat] it Is wrilten entirely In your favor, not mine.
All the best,
Laura Owens
. . y :
e B uen o Criohen S B0t ]
TED* ; Phone 415-810-0604
Wor Email @nobodytoidmeshow.com

Hera ara the choanges:

IV. Tarms of the agroemenl.

‘The Coupie sgregs that:

1. Fora pertod of one waek wﬁlk; detarmining the bast court of action for their pregnancy, Party Aand
Party B, Wi with “ir s mogning with the goal of it turning into
somathing !un;ﬂnsuno and meanlng’ul Theto is ] igation 16 engsge ini it @ither Party

18 uncomtortahle with the ect,

2, From the data thal this agracment!s signed untll one week after. no action whatsaever will ba taken
In FC2023-062t14 or In any family, cwil, or criminat count case.

3. Pasty Aand Party B agree to take a patamity test with the lab of Party A's choice, Ravgan, and wii)
schedule it within 24 hours of when this agreemant is signad.

4. After the patemity tost renults come back providing Party A to be the father of Party B's twins, then
Pany B will execute a HiPAA release for Party B ta dizcuss the pregnancy with any of Pasty A's
providera frem the dals of conception (May 20th) through the end of the pregnancy n Fehruary 2024.

6. I & Joint decision 18 made to ) the cy thon Party A and Party B wil stipulate 1o
dlsmias FC2023-052114 once the pregnancy is confirmed by & doctor to 1o longer be viable, Party
B will pay Party A's legal toes to dete.

8. Ouring the one weak periad, it the [s made 8 it then Party A and
Party B will dizcusa what wauld make the bent situation for the chnldru n, whethor that be raising them
togother Or apan. The goal wauld be to keep the case oul of the court and lo avold acaving
continued logal foos, FC2023-052114 will remaln active until an agreement ko made outside af cout,
then the paﬂles will etipulate ta dismists &.

7. There Is no {ar the o work out bayand the ona weaks, howaver H 1t s apparert
that thia agresmant was entered 4mn 1ot the WIOR(G raasong, svidanced by abuse of any Wnad (verhat,
omotional, or physleal), 1t I3 nul) and vold.

B. At lhe end of the one weck portod, provided the terma have been met, then Party A and Party B are
ftorgvar barred from bringing shargea agalnst @each other for any reason up to that date.

i
:
1
b
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12/12/23, 9:50 AM I am the anonymous woman in the Clayton Echard scandal. Here'’s my story. - Anonymous - Medium

The Wayback Machine - https://web.archive.org/web/2023092203 0934/https://anonymouswomanl .medium.com. ..

‘.. Q  search Medium

| am the anonymous woman in the

Clayton Echard scandal. Here’s my
story.

Anonymous - Follow
3 hours ago

Q ® O

https://web.archive.org/web/20230922030934/https://anonymouswoman1 -medium.com/i-am-the-anonymous-woman-in-the-clayton-echard-scandal-... 118




12/12/23, 9:50 AM I am the anonymous woman in the Clayton Echard scandal. Here’s my story. - Anonymous - Medium

V& the SRORYMoWES wWormnan who has baen labeled Claylon Bchard's “gxeMling™, 1 am
decomplished & ey awe fighl and Rave no desir 1o gain aoloiely Bem s, which is why |
choge not tobe named. | was very elear that | had no desie for monay from hirm. AR | wanbed
Trems Rirn was Conmunicalion b Rgure sl & pannting plan far aur unBorm twing. He has
veduged bo falk ko roe for 8 fong Bme, wiif the exceplion of the eccasinal hurtiul emad, | kg
higmt many Gires thal if e did not gurs This ool with ma gaabely, | wedd go to the media
bacausa [ thought that would get him bo step up fo the plate.

i am comiing Torward simply because there has bean confusion over whaller or niot
Clayton seni the crusl lext messages and emails thal he did. Pve ehesen ko publish them
here and will put my enlire reputatizn on the line by saylng that he sent every one of
those messages. H anyona wanis to clalm these were doctorad, |hawve the phene and
emall records lo prove It. He knows bettar then to sue me for iihel becaues the truth s a
camplabe defense to defamation, and | am ielling the truti,

mof on birkh conbiol Bocause 47 | hada' been seaaly aclive sinee hMarch of 202, o ) iy
anfi-amiguie medicalion imlerored sl i, I ke days piter, | iold Claybar ihal | had been
eansidEring taking Fran B becuse | wasn't on birth conbrel, In ihe and, [ didns.

Ch heay 3151, 1 had 2 pregnancy tost done prior 16 8 medical best, It was negative, | was sl
concevind | was preguant Snce Spain, | wasal ¢ birth contral, and bought @ pregnansy best
the ritxt dage Oin June 151, | bested posiive, | kamy Clayion woolda'l beliswe mie, 5o | decided
bo g B wmgrént car o gt & West dana, | hgured ke would beliows it i thare was official madical
dacumentsiion. Cenirary fo what mary have said, il was not on that day that | leamed | was
having twins; all that happened was that | discovered | was pregnant.

I sent Clayion &n email with @ timaline and &l of the swdence. | ot this In respanse, which s
preof that Claylon very much knew and balieved thal § was pregran siter we hooked (K

M Frrad ]

EROEMH Viry, very, sesy L

EI B 3 PO W i BF B | | R 5 B S R bl B Bl S e Y e R T o B J
i sk |

Wa oid nat communicate much afer ihad for several days, buk | did gat this essagE fram him:

https://web.archive.org/web/20230922030934/hltps://anonymouswoman1 .medium.com/i-am-the-anonymous-woman-in-the-clayton-echard-scandal-... 2/18



12/12/23, 9:50 AM I am the anonymous woman in the Clayton Echard scandal. Here’s my story. - Anonymous - Medium

7325 = Wik

AR

This i thie last lime | will
eemmunicala with Yol on this matler.

| wawld like fior you 1o get an abarﬂan
IIf you ane pragnant with iy child,
which I still don't believe, but it
doesn’t really malter mrhm waﬂ II'
mu nﬂn:: mt that's ¥ i

He alzo spewed the follawing Insulls a1 me, and for those who dowbt that he did, | heve recods
ED punone il

| dan't belove your for o secard ar i3 Soneslly sad fiz s whal pouve resored fo

U e embarassing poarsel of Uis poin,

You sged io sood rolfessinn Halp a0 iogs yan vl de 23 b lake 5 el e it Al s sing
1 Faape yoer emcfarslnd it HiEh g | 4% of o 4 Fry v ol on e, Yow wand mre fo sless mhoal
wardering i imeregnmled you far weaks,

L, sk powesei wity your're doing iy, Pleass, aafeer saw Wiy e you suljasling neer
Aurdr Baiyy be Fudg?

Yeisi e WG fo dosligy iy Siial siofs,
Bt i par yow Fesd,.. 801 pleg § i SCYTEHTE B,
Bial fer iy g Biveijp Sovirecad elas ko f i g fissd erval

lagifirnadely Jaate you sgif now.

https://web.archive.org/web/20230922030934/https://anonymouswoman -medium.com/i-am-the-anonymous-woman-in-the-clayton-echard-scandal-... 3118~




12/12/23, 9:50 AM I am the anonymous woman in the Clayton Echard scandal. Here’s my story. - Anonymous - Medium

You've indoe my I 50 siressiul since Fee Anomn sour s iF Joe oot o ok ke i B amd 5
#ig e oepf dral pow an proguad, § ool Sale poe aven meeg,

ey dnalred wilt oy gvawef pour drcide fo il mo Mrough o of i,

Ay iy sindd Sesd o7 & RRDiE G RS ol Seumaihing Bilfan af g witnil o spdyiel
awrsefnes fa,

e @ ko v present, , . waond nof sy o word 1o pow, § il ool ACHAIESASOS Ja

g Hliivigr Aol it 1% wihviin | itk B my fing foe goed, aspecially vl i's vaaded i anger, I
it f Sy, Ever

s s vt Yioas Bre Beling S0 fratking) dhat 47 senq ¥ Yau 2an slog every 1o e of Dess
CONSOGLACES ST WILTE ENCaEIIG SOl i DOcauss oo R st fosed With ey’

§ Avean, s fuking jestarmem g Sad s g, A i piaced for ey ity Bei [0 evi g
il iy .

o Tl Togf yverr e g i Fope YOLT Rk ohoand Fasy barriite thig s faf o would sibied me
1o dFigs,

Iy frake f5 doaard you arnd wo i

| Fae dircided 1wl o fanger B in coplseh with pou, BRMESE JouT mom fakes @ phore eall willl mi.
W ale will srol, Hhed's ok, Bl thess 5 commumicalion wil be o off

G de helling e ifds man wifl prowids me with ife clardy | need, 83 | have many queshions and
thase qursalions have fumed ino bebeds, ..ones thal hirve led i emmesily and' o eomgkete Gk of
fressf Tt your, (Codh fadl Jour iy adiive: g wire cawsed me 1 gl sodepsy paudd Be a dlfer
reRrnR Mo e ? And pow eoakd tnesl Bim mom fhan me 2
| Bl el 5 sarn Sick nae e phay B Stignian,

You Badey b sedous abhawd g Gremaant becanss i yorie saf, (e beinging fis a8 fa G,
Praphy g yon necd fo b held accontable, Yoo can bock off now if i s ¥ 0 game ang T i I
5. Bud i you conlinug G knper sad iFr il o Be, §wan histote fe e dog duil,

Aify persord el wourld B having o iave you b @ part of my 6

Tlig desperdhion & somatlung | fsge o &8 address,

Yit ying In B fparof iy fa be sscociated wilh o foe my delins.

W iiel] Evragy redtading, el ik arey aRorTelra il Y i,

Yo e ARELAATE, SEBSEEERWT o el ROrGIERENG Do v,

https://web.archive.org/web/20230922030934/https://anonymouswoman1.medium.com/i-am-the-anonymous-woman-in-the-clayton-echard-scandal-... 4/18




12/12/23, 9:50 AM | am the anonymous woman in the Clayton Echard scandal. Here’s my story. - Anonymous - Medium

Bur o't Nave any smpatily for drose fu sdfack S mmeres feaith of olfers trouwls
irarmdatian and Fcn frrand play g wielim cand,

rveivihaiels Blge o il iy wills paocypie’s momstionss o fhe warsh kne of persan, e mef many,
Bann MR Srdvandag e of S midy drl e ek and ded of plindrg aicd with them,
Yau fan’l desdneg my ampaiiy,
Yo' nbsessed it e iden of being sdiacent i me,
After his Bany of Insults, | wes surprised bo receive these messages from him on Jure 18h;

if you decitie 12 hav the kizl, then that is your decision s | w8 respett it Howieer, one of us
will o 1B0% mmﬂdj,l_,:hm willl B Fa |airt enrstidy, | el glargly Sl s and st dnmmm
& uEsn anul

I teel we reed 1s have o face to fice discussion. I's 190 eagy to Gl upset via 18xt. Bul in-perzan,
canversations s meee earing and cordial. | belivie this is exactly whal wo need, &s teviing hasn't
bizen warking wall.

Ho, let's plamon 75307 ‘
] 3:
1 fenl Ged Is balbng mz wo shandd meng g Eemight;, 50 ys, 1'd like fo do Pk, We should s henr

talidng in-pezzon fr mead of 1his sy, Mewiireg lsift nesng Tor me didfEmpacifulfiife-
il:hzrglgmg £améeraatians and |'ve beree amd Bearred That phefity &f Bz,

1491 bt s v 1'ms hicsadineg Bach: heang tanight, Byl arcund F:30pm sheaid wark,

O Bad might, Claylen purchased & pregnancy best and mad me take it in frond of Aim. 11 was :
pasitive. We s dovn for 3 couple of howrs and falked. He explained fo ma fhat he had a ;
drasn atout bis fulims wile and son. The wonn was blonds, and o me. He 53id ha was
alirached Io edhnic wamen, not patile brunattes [ke me. He said thal he slways swiped ket on i
wirmed with childian, and his biggast argurrant b and the pregm_-r@,' s thal wirman wosld 5
S laft on him. He wosrigd that it would impact his dating life. Despite ihis, we had & decani
eonversation and degidad we would consider ghing dating a fry for ihe sake of the baby jwe
dign’l knew we ware having twins then), He premised io be Supporiive and said Thal he would
check on me every day. That lesled onig diey.

Chn fune 20k, | recehsed these meszEges:
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I'm soTy you're Toreilingg 522k,
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wEERESAH va can mee] back up and 268 i Vs 8 passibhty ba be inlinebe. fm el ﬂﬂ,.ving i@ b
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#n hiour labes, Clayion changead his mind, bul ihis t8xi sonfivms he krew thal ihe test was
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Ta: Glalen Eekant

I'm; soery s mads IE hardar, | warilad you e ¢ome over 1o confirm what | was doubting. And It
i egnlivm ihal. 56, 1don’l see you as a liaf anymesra, Bul, thal daasn' daangn hive | Taig) abt
preceeding forwerd. | can beiipwe youfe 1ailing the Bruth, bt gEil] gtan firm I Aot wanting to
e arything furthor swith yow, Thatis what I'm shoosing o de,

Om e wery same day, he warl frorm wanbing ba be Intimate o this, corfirming that we gd indeed
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O Jina 218, | received an email from Clayton wilh & theory (hal my anl-epdeplic medicalions
cauged me lolest pogdive, | daproved ihis iheary, which vou ean view Belods, You ean al5e seg
fhat the posiiive pregnancy est § ieok at his Rowse i3 on the counder
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Chy Jiang 2411, Claylon emaited me saying that he would pay for I paternity best, deapis
belling ihe press thad Be has said el 1 would e sEspongible: for e full amaunt, | bold ki (hat |
abready knew that he was he fsiher, and if he noeded reassurance he peaded 1o pay:

While: Clayten clainigd thal be dold me al | needed 16 pay tor the palemiy s, vou can see
fhat was not B case:
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Pethioner's messages to Respondent negmrdimg takln@ premnaial
Gmail  paternity test

Paternity iasl, ete,
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Vdigeovernd | was haviwy hwing after that. 1n mid-Jdy, | decidod bo Rire an aliefngy o act a3 a
middlarnian, since Cayton would not communicste direcily wilh e, He fold the lawyar 1hat he
fhaught §wds on weighl 1058 dregs or farily digs thal imade i best positvs. | ofered far hir
to atbend an ultrasownd appeiniment, which ihe lvayer conveyed to hir His response was dis:

P Grail ———
I « E<hard

weed, ol B S T F PR

o prpasasd B e duind mmrd by eew R g Bl aiad i Bl b o dotlan whon aigan baing
E'f F‘.n:q:‘lm:l’r.m BT AT B P L 525 ;mu ﬂﬂm!ﬁﬂl FURSTE mxmnji‘:n:m L5 ¢
TR FeRTeg den s, Bxly, Hil & e Ea7 feke el A7l Fed viERFre it o i folnd
LERR i ) nofEd A s 4 evary b 1om oy g g B0 m@mm B ] P TEERE

Wempear teol B! s s 15 pipp Dl prosenn el yous 5& -:]pmfgmwﬂ:nhhﬂsanhmfmb el R s
& AT i

O August 14th, Clayben Sant me this and then wenil dark o me for daye. Talling ma that he
was "heavily under he influence” and “nof afiracted to [me] sobee® hurt;
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Claylon's behavior caused me 19 be borderline-suicidal twice, simply because | have fel
panicked bl Faigeng teins om my cwa, All | heve wented |3 communication and & plan, |
gxplained g i amails b e, whick | Wl not post dug 1o e very personal nalue of them, |
prasurvied §hat a3 5 ‘sutide provenlion adeecales’ (and The father of our unksarm childrgn), e
wolld b 8Dl b negs me, | peeled reassurancs Inal he woubd hely eare far them and he eould
oA poavichs b Clayion kridw that if | loak oy aw life, | would Be anding e lives of aur dRbarm
5 I lsly BeSes et is wiusl b wanted, 33 1 would solve al of hig probesms,

Claylon was #lso sippesed to meet up with me fwe days prior to our Eariy Fesoiuion
Canfensrcs on Sopkember 2B, bul he has nok rmspondad & ry emailks indng b arganize tis,

Claylon claimed | was “obégssed” wilh dating him, which is nol true. | emaded him io clasify this
sfter The Sun article came out, saying: *l. BO. HNOT, WANT. TO. DATE. YO | had noi
eeen The Bacheior, and if | had, i MEHEIWGUM hawe chosen hitm &s my reafior, lel alone s
someone | would be infimisbe wiili. | have told him mamy imes that | would teke & e detecior
fesd do prowe that | had not seen hiz season, After he siarted ia display deceptive behavior in a
real sxiats ransection, | finelly searched for kim an YouTube Bnd watehed thres clips af him
sending Susse, Gabby, and Rackel harme, Todate, thatis sl | hawe seen,

it | & rriigsing anvifing. o if sameens doubls liege megsenes fram Claylon, | am happy io

prowide any recends negdod o prove that | am indeed lolling (Fue b, |wil put my entire
ropulatian g it,
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Finally, Clayton wrote on his Response to Establish Paternity that he did not
want to give the children his last name or be put on their birth certificates if
he is found to be the natural father.

REQUESTS TO THE COURT:

1. FOR CQRDER OF PATERMITY:
tasue order declaring that ] Party & or [l Paity B clalmad to ba the father, (namad below)
Clayhom & Larst

Cis (om EMS HOT the natural father of the miner ehildjrem),

FATHER, THEN THE COURT SHOULD ALSC ORDER AS FOLLOWS:

A. BIRTH CERTIFICATE: (zhock the box and complate if s 13 desired)

[:[l Erder that the name of tha father a5 appears on hig birih cartiflcats or other legal dosument
shiuld be added i each minar ehild’s birh eerlficate 48 ihe fallor

B. LAST NAME: (check the box and complate if this this iz desired)

[ eovdor that sach miner child's last nama bo changed to he a5l fame of:

Bachelor Clayton Echard The Bachelor
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@ Story by Daniel Trainor « 2mo

‘Bachelor’ Alum Clayton Echard Allegedly Told Woman |
Who Claims to Be Pregnant With His Twins to Get an
Abortion: Report

Echard is accused of impregnating a former
fling earlier this year, though he allegedly told |
her via text message, 'I will not be raising it in
any capacity’ :

Published |Updated
Daniel Trainor
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L Clayton Echard Jon Kopaloff/Wirelmage
© Jon Kopaloff/Wirelmage

Clayton Echard is being accused of texting a woman who claims to be:.

pregnant with his twins to undergo an abortion. ‘

According to documents obtained Tuesday by Page Six, the former
Bachelor star also allegedly refuted paternity in text messages.

“l would like for you to get an abortion (if you are pregnant with my |.
child, which | still don't believe, but it doesn't rea{ly matter either way;
Echard allegedly texted the woman, according to the court docs. "If
you do not, that's your choice."

Arizona Will Cover Cost to Install Solar
Panels in These Zip Codes

@ EasySolar

The woman, a 33-year-old podcast host from Scottsdale, Ariz,, who
~ wishes to remain anonymous, claims she and Echard had a one-night:
stand in May that resulted in the pregnancy. '

“Then, in that case, if it ends up being my child, | have decided that
either you'll take 100% custody of the child, or it will be put up for
adoption," Echard's alleged text continued. "l will not be raising itin |
any capacity." ‘

The text was just one in a flurry of allegedly "erratic, illogical and
threatening messages” said to be sent by Echard.

The woman submitted screenshots of the messages, which included, /-
don't believe you for a second"; "I legitimately hate you right now";
and "You have lost your mind and I hope YOU think about how terribl. -
this is that you would subject me to this.” ’

Echard also allegedly wrote, "My personal hell would be having to ha'jr;‘.
you be a part of my life." :

29+ Coolest Gifts Nobody Would Think Of

In response, Echard accused the woman of "harassing" him because
she is "obsessed" with him. He also denies they ever had sexual
intercourse. Echard told 7he Sun, who was the first to obtain the

|
|
!
P

documents, that he plans to sue the woman. i
F
The Messenger reached out to a representative for Echard, who Page‘
Six reports is now scheduled to take a paternity test Sept. 26, two day

hafmcn thn mmarkine maant i caed
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The Telegraph

é Jennifer Aniston reveals she and Matthew
Perry exchanged messages on day he died

Story by Timothy Sigsworth + 5h

L Aniston with Perry in 1995 at an NBC event in New York - RON DAVIS/GETTY IMAGES
© Provided by The Telegraph

Jennifer Aniston has revealed she texted a "happy and healthy”
Matthew Perry on the morning of the Friends star's death.

Perry, who shot to worldwide fame for his role in the cult American
television series, was found dead at his Los Angeles home in late
October.

“I was literally texting with him that morning, funny Matty,” Aniston
told Variety magazine.

“He was not in pain. He wasn't struggling. He was happy.”

;
‘ FLos =L
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L Jennifer Aniston (left with Reese Witherspoon) gives her first interview since the death of
Matthew Perry to Variety magazine - Dan Doperalski for Variety
© Provided by The Telegraph
It was Aniston’s first interview since her American-Canadian co-star's
death at the age of 54. Perry's cause of death has not been officially
determined.

“He was happy. He was healthy. He had quit smoking. He was getting
in shape. He was happy — that's all | know," she added.

‘I want people to know he was really healthy, and getting healthy. He ;
was on a pursuit. He worked so hard. He really was dealt a tough one.

“I miss him dearly. We all do. Boy, he made us laugh really hard.”
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L Jennifer Aniston and Reese Witherspoon front VARIETY'S Emmy Edition and speak with
Hollywood's most iconic entertainment magazine about ‘The Morning Show’, Aniston texting
with Matthew Perry on the day of his passing, intimacy coordinators, if the show is camp, and
more.
© Provided by The Telegraph

Perry played Chandler in all 234 episodes of the sitcom, which ran for
10 series from 1994 to 2004.

The sitcom catapulted him, Aniston and their four co-stars to
household fame and by its final series the group were paid more than
£800,000 ($1 million) per episode.

But Perry struggled with drug and alcohol addiction for much of his
adult life.

In a 2021 memoir he said he had attended 6,000 Alcoholics
Anonymous meetings, been to rehab 15 times and had 14 stomach
surgeries.

He added that his alcoholism meant drinking 14 triple vodka shots was
not enough to get him drunk.

“Not only do | have the disease, but | also have it bad,” he wrote.
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“I have it as bad as you can have it, in fact. It's back-to-the-wall time all
the time. It's going to kill me.”

Aniston said the outpouring of tributes to Perry in the wake of his
death was "so beautiful”.

“I hope he can know that he was loved in a way he never thought he
was," she said.

%n

Sign up to the Front Page newsletter for free: Your essential guide
to the day’s agenda from The Telegraph - direct to your inbox
seven days a week.
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'The Bachelor Alum Clayton Echard
Declares the 'Truth Will Always Set You
Free’ amid Paternity Scandal

A woman that Echard allegedly slept with once reportedly claimed in a
new lawsuit that he refused to take a paternity test after she became

pregnant with twins

By Esther Kang Published on September 21, 2023 10:54PM EDT

O®OE®
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Clayton Echard. PHOTO: ABC/PAMELA LITTKY

The Bachelor alum Clayton Echard is setting the record straight.

On Thursday, the 30-year-old reality star posted a screenshot of a receipt
for a paternity test in order to clear the air after he was named in a

paternity lawsuit in August by an unidentified woman.

In the lawsuit, the woman alleged that Echard got her pregnant after the
two met for a one-night stand. Since filing the suit, the woman has
requested Echard take a test to find out the paternity of her unborn twins
before she gives birth in February. The 33-year-old woman, who has
chosen to remain anonymous, has recently claimed that the former

Bachelor wasn't complying with her requests for a test.

“This is the timeline. The truth will always set you free,” Echard wrote over
the email receipt in a post to his Instagram Story. Per his screenshot, the
television personality paid $725 to schedule an appointment with o

paternity clinic.
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“Results will then take about a week to get back. | believe we're all on the

same page now.”

PEOPLE has reached out to Echard's reps for comment.
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Clayton Echard’s Instagram Story. PHOTO: CLAYTON ECHARD/INSTAGRAM
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that he refused to take a test and that she had to pay a $725 deposit for it,

but Echard called her accusations “baseless” and “lacking in merit.”

In court documents obtained by PEOPLE, the woman stated that Echard
refused to believe she was pregnant when she originally informed him

back in June.

“I wanted you to come over to confirm what | was doubting. And you did
confirm that. So, | don’t see you as a liar anymore,” he allegedly texted the

unidentified woman.

RELATED: Clayton Echard and Rachel Recchia Poke Fun at ‘Reality TV Trauma’ as

They Reunite Beside ‘Bachelor Pals

After the two parties take the paternity test, they are scheduled for an early

resolution conference and will appear in court immediately on Sept. 28.

Echard’s alleged paternity scandal comes nearly one year after he and

Susie Evans announced their decision to split. The former couple met on his

season of The Bachelor and lived together for less than a year before

going long distance and eventually parting ways.
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Susie Evans and Clayton Echard. PHOTO: CRAIG SJIODIN/ABC

RELATED: Clayton Echard Says He's Focusing on Himself After Susie Evans Split: ‘I'm
Not Mentally Healed’

"With incredibly heavy hearts, we wanted to share that we have decided to

go our separate ways,” Echard and Evans wrote in a joint Instagram

statement at the time. “For anyone who has ever loved, knows this was a

painful decision to make and not one taken lightly.”

"We understand that there will likely be a lot of questions about this
decision — social media is definitely a highlight reel and much of our
experiences together we have kept private as I'm sure most can
understand. But we will share this — although this last year together has
brought us so much joy and so many laughs, there has also been a
significant amount of pain,” they continued. "We know no healthy
relationship comes without its struggles, but we've realized that we were
not prepared for the external forces that hindered our ability to not only

heal as individuals but also as a couple.”
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news to compelling human interest stories.

The former couple said they would be "focused on continuing to work on

ourselves, so we can be the best version of ourselves” going forward.
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Life’s been a bit of a challenge latey... and that’s putting it mildly.

Unveiling the Unbearable: My Battle
Against Cyberbullying and Online
Harassment

1= Laura Owens - Follow
10 minread - 4 days ago

B Q ® 0

It’s incredibly hard to put this into words and share what'’s been going on. I've
never asked my friends or family for emotional support, but I'm feeling truly
shattered, defeated, mentally drained, and worthless due to the events of these past
several months. I have been the subject of a smear campaign that I wouldn’t wish
on my worst enemy, and the target of cyberbullying, cyberharassment, and
cyberstalking at a level that I truly think no one would believe was imaginable.
My heart has been torn to shreds, and it seems like nobody beyond my family truly
sees or understands who I am anymore. Maybe that’s my fault, since the sheer
embarrassment ofit all has been so overwhelming that I've found myself hiding
from the world.

Since around mid-September, I've been noticeably absent from social media
and pretty much detached from the life I used to lead. I can count on one
hand the times I've stepped out of my home since then, but the number of
times I've found myself in tears is beyond calculation. Earlier this morning,
around 4:30, I found myself on the floor, overwhelmed with emotions,




feeling more bullied and alone than I've ever felt. It struck me that maybe it’s
time to stop concealing what I've desperately tried to keep under wraps for
months now. I've come to understand that by not being public about what
I'm struggling with, I’ve made this battle harder for myself. It’s now
abundantly clear that the only way to stand up to bullies is by confronting

them directly.

I know that some of you caught wind of the rumors that I got pregnant by

i Clayton Echard, the star of The Bachelor’s season 26. Clayton had briefly
been my real estate agent, and during a May evening, our professional
dealings turned into something more personal. Following three positive
pregnancy tests — one taken at home, another at an urgent care center, and
the final one done in Clayton’s presence — it was evident that I was indeed
expecting. Soon after, I discovered I was pregnant with twins, and I knew
with 100% certainty that he was the father. Clayton went radio silent when it
came time to take a paternity test, despite my persistent requests — twenty-
nine times, to be exact — at a lab he had selected previously. When he finally
responded, he dared me to reach out to the tabloids, a move I knew would
compel him to comply with the test. Before the news hit the public, I pleaded
with the media to keep my identity under wraps, and they agreed. However,
their description of me as the “anonymous woman” contained enough
details for those familiar with me to make connections and for strangers to

track me down online.

Like many, [ was familiar with Reddit before news about my pregnancy
became public, but I had no grasp of the level of dedication its members
had. Shortly after the initial articles surfaced, a friend reached out,
informing me that self-proclaimed “sleuths” were actively discussing and
mentioning me by name in “subreddits” centered around The Bachelor. There

was a barrage of misinformation circulating, and initially, I wrote back to




correct those who were getting the facts twisted. However, these so-called
‘keyboard warriors’, shielded by anonymous usernames, only seemed to

intensify their interest in my life once they knew I was engaging with them.

Things took a truly devastating turn when an abusive ex decided to reach out
to Clayton, telling him that I had ‘done this before’. He was referring to two

- prior pregnancies — a part of my life I've guarded fiercely, not just from the
wider audience I'm speaking to now, but from everyone. Rather than having
a private discussion with me about it, Clayton broke the news to his
hundreds of thousands of followers, and Redditors, like relentless detectives,
latched onto this snippet of my personal history. They dove deep into my life,
tearing through layers I desperately wanted to keep hidden and, truth be
told, deservedly so. My life was becoming a mere public spectacle, and it
caught the eye of a Bachelor content creator named Dave Neal, a major figure

on Reddit, who has completely turned my world upside down.

Dave has blatantly victim-shamed me for my reproductive decisions, stating
that my life would hold no interest for him if it weren't for two prior
abortions. The source of the misinformation he’s spreading traces back to
two men I'd been pregnant by before. Their animosity against me, triggered
by the restraining orders I have against them, is the driving force behind the
distorted tales being circulated about me, and ones they have shared with
Dave. They supplied him with court documents containing entirely baseless,
never-seriously-considered-by-a-judge claims about me, which Dave has
disseminated as if they were factual. Although their accusations were
unequivocally untrue, they were mortifyingly embarrassing and not
something I wanted anyone to know. My decision to stay silent inadvertently
bolstered Dave’s platform, giving him free rein to harass me without facing

any consequences.




The allegations they had previously made against me in response to cases I
filed against them were horrendous, alleging that I falsified my pregnancies,
tampered with records regarding my past pregnancies, and fabricated the
severity of the injuries I sustained due to abuse. In a desperate effort to get
him to stop spreading false and extremely damaging information about me, I
offered to sign a release to have my previous pregnancy records sent directly
to him from my providers. I sent him proof that I was one of only 630
patients accepted into the Domestic Violence Brain Injury Program at
Barrow Neurological Institute, the only one of its kind in the nation, as a
result of “multiple strangulation injuries” resulting in me developing
epilepsy. However, he ignored my offers, revealing that he cared little for the

truth.

Dave’s motivation in continuing to create content about me has been the
massive surge in viewers and listeners on his monetized platforms by
peddling sensationalized, entirely untrue tales about my life. He claims that
he “doesn’t take a shit without monetizing it”, and so his motivation is clearly
financial. Dave puts out so much content that it feels like doing damage
control is a full time job: he posts three shows, usually one about me, to
YouTube and two podcasts a day. Each time, it sparks a fresh wave of
discussions that only add more fuel to this never-ending fire.

Dave’s enormous following on Reddit has made my life incredibly difficult.
They’ve created countless threads in Bachelor-related subreddits, and in the
ultimate showing of targeted harassment, one person even went as far as
creating a subreddit in my name just to bully me. I was taken aback when I
read a post purported to be from a high school peer with outrageously far-
fetched and blatantly false allegations, claiming that during that time, I was
pregnant by multiple men, including a special needs student and fathers of
my peers. One fabricated story claimed that my father offered one student




$6000 to buy new speakers for his car if he would date me for a month. The
reality was quite different — I was extremely introverted throughout high
school, never attended a party, and had my first kiss during the week of
graduation. These claims hold no resemblance to reality, yet they've left me
feeling utterly powerless and deeply ashamed. It feels as though the
reputation I painstakingly built and every achievement I've held dear have
been ruthlessly torn apart and relentlessly mocked in profoundly

disheartening posts.

The comments said about me have been brutal, such as, “I hope she’s an
organ donor so something good can come out of her pathetic existence”, and
that I am “a complete waste of skin and bones”. I've been told to kill myself,
with comments suggesting it might help my family move past the supposed
disgrace they claim I've brought upon them. My dad’s Wikipedia has even
been edited several times by trolls to state that he only has one daughter, my

- gister.

Dave claims to have only referred to me by “Jane Doe”, but my name has
appeared in his content many times, and his fixation on me has reached the
level of an obsession. Since September, he’s churned out over fifty videos
about me, boldly claiming that the count might escalate to “more than one
hundred and forty” as he continues to probe into my life. Moreover, he’s
generated well over a hundred hours of podcast content solely focused on
me and actively pursued opportunities to appear on any podcasts, offering to
fly anywhere in the country to do so, because he is so eager to discuss my life

through his lens of lies.

I would be lying if I said I wasn’t afraid of Dave. During one of his live
streams, he inadvertently displayed a map leading to my home. In an

interview just this week, his comments became even more alarming as he




said he wished I had been a passenger on the missing Malaysian flight 370.
Adding insult to injury, e shamelessly exhibited a picture of me in a bra
with an exposed pregnant belly during one of his episodes. When I
requested its removal, he callously dismissed my concerns, laughing as he
told his audience, “Bra or no bra, who cares?™. He's joked about me having a

miscarriage, which is something that is not remotely funny.

As a last resort, [ filed for an Injunction Against Harassment against Dave
due to his obsessive interest in me and his flat out refusal to stop making
videos and podeasts about me when asked. However, when I informed him
that lie would be served by a process server, he turned the tables.
Deceptively, he began painting himself as fearful of me. His followers swiftly
joined in, spreading these unfounded notions that 1 might pose a threat. I've
been called “unhinged” an innumerable amount of times and his followers
have posted countless times that T need to be institutionalized. It's been

oulrageous, entirely unwarranted, and incredibly upsetting.

My physical appearance has been a relentless subject of mockery. Multiple
memes have been created, emphasizing my looks and targeting me with
hurtful comments about my looks, People claimed to be stunned that
Clayton chose to be intimate with me for just one night after having
numerous beautiful women to seleet from during his time as The Bachelor,
Clayton himself mentioned T didn't Jook as pretiy as [ appeared in some

Instagram photos he scrolled through.

1 thonght that maybe if I were able to change my identity on the outside, I
might get back to feeling lile myself on the inside, After a lot of thought, 1
decided to file for a legal name ehange, which was discoverad by Dave the

day after I filed the petition with the court, and my new identity as Emily




Wilson was disclosed to his audience, making it obsolete, [ felt like I had run

out of ideas to escape the relentless nightmare I was living in.

My integrity means cvervthing to me, T've never Hed about being pregnant
nor the extent to which I've been abused, and I have medical records to back
status of my pregnancy with Clayton. I kindly ask not to receive congratulations
or engage in discussions about Clayton and my pregnancy. This post is not
intended for that purpose, What 1 can confirm is that I sought an order of
protection agalnst him. Despite my only sending him pregnancy updates,
interestingly, a month later, he oblained an Injunction Against Harassment

against me.

Dave’s followers have chosen to write my full name on Reddit and in the
comments sections on his YouTube videos because they say that in doing so,
they will alter the SEOQ algorithm so that these blatant lies about me are
shown at the top of Google seavch results. Ie has incited hatred,

harassment, and threats against me, and T am just exhausted from it.

Over the last few months, I've often questioned: What is the allure of a 33-
year-old woman, confirmed to be pregnant three times, lo him and his
audience? How much more content can he create, and how much more can 1
take? Although I would be more than entitled to file a defamation lawsuit
against Dave, [ have no desire to have my life drained by the legal system and
simply want him to stop and remove the videos. If vou warit to watch how
cruelly, and flat-out bizarrely, Dave has spoken to and aboul me, you can

this video,

watch

I'm sure this post will spark more hateful content from Dave, and he will

ineite his followers to make more cruel comments about me. Despite




outwardly claiming to my family that I've become desensitized to anything
that can be said to me at this point, Dave’s videos still deeply affect me, as do
the words of his supporters. While I know I will advocate against
cyberbullying in the future, right now, I just wish for this torment to stop.
His relentless bullying has pushed me to the brink, causing moments where
I've felt close to the edge of despair. I've even expressed to him that the blood
would be on his hands if I harmed myself due to his relentless harassment,
but it had no impact on him. It just provided him with something else to talk
about on his shows. And why would he stop talking about me? Spreading
misinformation generates profit for him, and that appears to be his sole
concern. It's an ongoing struggle to try to rise above this situation.

My life has changed after witnessing how cruel people can be, and while I'm
a changed person after all of this (how could I not be?), I still want to be
Laura Owens, not Emily Wilson. I'm anxious about how people might
perceive me once I share my story, but holding all of this inside hurts. In the
face of relentless cyberbullying, I yearn for the torment to cease, hoping
that someday, my story will speak louder than the falsehoods, and the
strength I find within will reclaim the identity they sought to shatter.

Cyberharassment Cyberbully Struggle Overcoming Obstacles Empowerment




Written by Laura Owens
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